Council Minutes of the Meeting of October 20, 2011
Page 6

UNAPPROVED

CITY OF BLAINE

ANOKA COUNTY, MINNESOTA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING NO. 11-55
Thursday, October 20, 2011
7:30 P.M.


Council Chambers


10801 Town Square Drive

CALL TO ORDER BY MAYOR RYAN

The meeting was called to order at 7:30 p.m. by Mayor Ryan followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and the Roll Call.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

ROLL CALL

Councilmembers Bourke, Herbst, Hovland, Kolb, Swanson, Mayor Ryan, City Manager Clark Arneson, and City Attorney Thomas Sweeney.

ABSENT:  Councilmember Clark.

Quorum present.

ALSO PRESENT: Bryan Schafer, Community Development Director; Bob Therres, Public Services Manager; Joe Huss, Finance Director; Roark Haver, Communications Technician; Jane Cross, City Clerk; and Recording Secretary Linda Dahlquist.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Workshop Meeting – October 6, 2011

Regular Meeting – October 6, 2011

Action 11-255 (AI 4.1)
Moved by Councilmember Herbst, seconded by Councilmember Bourke, that the Minutes of the Workshop Meeting of October 6, 5011, and the Regular Meeting of October 6, 2011, be approved.

Motion adopted unanimously.

AWARDS - PRESENTATIONS - ORGANIZATIONAL BUSINESS

Proclamation – November Homeless Awareness Month
Mayor Ryan proclaimed November 2011 to be Homeless Awareness Month in the City of Blaine. 
Heather Reese, 627 Tyler Street, Anoka, Executive Director of Stepping Stone Emergency Housing, stated until recently Stepping Stone was the only adult homeless sheltering system in Anoka.  She stated Family Promise opened in September and provides services to families in Anoka County.  She commented there are students and parents that are homeless in Anoka County.  She welcomes Blaine residents to go to the local library to see artwork displays made by homeless people of Anoka County.  Ms. Reese stated there will be activities throughout the month and opportunities to volunteer or donate to Family Promise, Stepping Stone or Life Partners.  She said Stepping Stone is licensed for 20 beds and two of the beds are held for Anoka County law enforcement.  Stepping Stone is small and the waiting list is up to 40 men and women.  She noted it is common for homeless families to sleep in their cars parked in parking lots.  She said Stepping Stone’s goal is to help the homeless get into permanent housing.  

Councilmember Bourke asked if Blaine could link websites with Stepping Stone to www.steppingstoneeh.org.  

COMMUNICATIONS

None.
OPEN FORUM FOR CITIZEN INPUT 
Mayor Ryan opened the Open Forum 7:39 p.m. 
Abdelaziz Hassan, 12160 Sunset Avenue, stated he had purchased a foreclosed property in April, but didn’t move in right away due to the house needing repair.  He stated that when he moved in to the house, he received a bill from the City for $1,000 for grass cutting.  He called the realtor and was told the bill was from Wells Fargo, the prior owner.  He stated he did not receive any notice from the City to cut the grass.  He believes he was treated unfairly.  Mr. Hassan does not want anyone else to be in this same situation.  
Councilmember Herbst asked how many times the yard was cut.  City Manager Arneson responded the lawn person cut the grass three times.  
Councilmember Herbst asked how the City notified Mr. Husson.  City Manager Arneson stated a letter dated June 15, 2010 was mailed from the City to Mr. Husson and the mowing occurred on June 28, 2010.   He stated Mr. Husson was in Anoka County Court and the City prevailed.  
Councilmember Kolb stated Mr. Hassan wanted to let the Council and other residents know so this situation does not happen again.
Ola Hassan, wife of Abdelaziz Hassan, stated she likes to work their land.  She stated cutting the grass takes three hours.  

Councilmember Kolb stated this happened over a year ago and the Hassan’s have done a great job on their grass since.
Councilmember Bourke questioned the hourly rate of $70 per hour.  He stated the bid was to include photos as part of the process.  City Manager Arneson stated there were no photos taken.  He commented this was a foreclosed property and there were no grass cutting from April to June.  

Councilmember Herbst stated a certified letter should have been sent.

Mayor Ryan closed Open Forum 7:54 p.m.

ADOPTION OF AGENDA

Mayor Ryan moved agenda item 12.1 up on the agenda
ADMINISTRATION

Resolution 11-0148, Awarding the Sale of $1,560,000 General Obligation Certificate of Indebtedness, Series 2011A. 
Action 11-256 (AI 12.1)
Moved by Councilmember Herbst, seconded by Councilmember Swanson, for Awarding the Sale of $1,560,000 General Obligation Certificate of Indebtedness, Series 2011A,” are approved.

Finance Director Huss reported at the October 6 meeting the Council had authorized the sale of bonds to purchase three fire engines, a utility vehicle and a chief’s vehicle.  He stated the amount of the bonds is reduced by $5,000 due to the interest rate. 
Terri Heaton, Springsted, Inc., stated four bids were received and nineteen financial institutions were represented.  She stated the low bid was from UMB Bank.  She stated Blaine has a good credit rating and is one notch below an AAA rating with Moody’s report stating Blaine’s rating is at AA1.  Ms. Heaton stated Blaine’s strengths are conservative budgeting resulting in operating surpluses, and continued residential and commercial development.  Blaine’s challenges are the declines in the overall taxable market values and the reduced property tax revenues resulting from the flat tax rates.  She stated what could move Blaine’s rating up is the stabilization and increases in the total valuations and the strengthening of the City’s demographic profile.  She stated what could move Blaine’s rating down is reduced revenues resulting in ongoing operating deficits, significant reduction in reserve levels, and economic deterioration leading to erosion of the tax base and the demographic profile.  

Councilmember Kolb asked to review the Moody’s report in a future workshop.

Motion adopted unanimously.

8:00 P.M. – PUBLIC HEARINGS AND ITEMS SET FOR A CERTAIN TIME

None.
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA:  

Action 11- 257 (AI 10.1 and 10.2)

Moved by Councilmember Bourke, seconded by Councilmember Herbst, that the following be approved:  

TMP 11-0161, Schedule of Bills Paid 09/23/11, 09/30/11, 10/07/11, Manual Check List for Council-September 2011. 
Motion 11-0026, Approve Renewal of Currency Exchange Licenses for:

A.
Al’$ Check Cashing LLC, 1434 – 93rd Lane NE

B.
SJB Enterprises Inc., d/b/a Your Exchange, 10553 University Avenue NE. 

Motion adopted unanimously. 
DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS
Resolution 11-0142, Granting a Conditional Use Permit Amendment to Approve a New Landscaping Plan and Home Designs for Six (6) Townhome Buildings (28 townhome Units) in the Legacy Creek Development at Legacy Creek Parkway/125th Lane NE.  SSC Funding I, LLC.  
Action 11-258 (AI 11.1)

Moved by Councilmember Herbst, seconded by Councilmember Kolb, that Resolution 11-0142, “Granting a Conditional Use Permit Amendment to Approve a New Landscaping Plan and Home Designs for Six (6) Townhome Buildings (28 townhome Units) in the Legacy Creek Development at Legacy Creek Parkway/125th Lane NE.  SSC Funding I, LLC.,” be approved.

Community Development Director Schafer reported on October 6th, the Council reviewed and approved a new townhome plan for Legacy Creek. The developer wishes to sell the remaining platted townhome lots to the builder Mattamy Homes to construct identical units to the ones approved.  In order for Mattamy Homes to construct the units on the platted lots, a conditional use permit amendment is required that sets the standards of the development and negates the townhomes designs by the former builder Centex that was approved for this site.  Mattamy Homes is proposing six (6) buildings for a total of 28 units. 

Motion adopted unanimously.

Resolution 11-0143, Granting a Preliminary Plat Extension for Woodland Village Subdividing 73.24 Acres into 85 Lots, Three (3) Common Lots and Two (2) Outlots to be Known as Woodland Village at Gardenwood Parkway/Hupp Street NE.  Woodland Development Corporation.

Action 11- 259 (AI 11.2)

Moved by Councilmember Bourke, seconded by Councilmember Herbst, that Resolution 11-0143, “Granting a Preliminary Plat Extension for Woodland Village Subdividing 73.24 Acres into 85 Lots, Three (3) Common Lots and Two (2) Outlots to be Known as Woodland Village at Gardenwood Parkway/Hupp Street NE,” be approved.

Community Development Director Schafer stated in May 2011, the applicant received approval of a preliminary plat from the City Council for a subdivision of Woodland Village that includes 73 acres and 85 lots creating a mixture of single and twin home residential units.  The developer has not made any progress towards submitting the final plat for this property due to site work and market condition.  The applicant would like to obtain a one year extension on the preliminary plat approval.  The plat extension does not change any conditions of the plat.  The extension only allows the property owners more time.  The final plat will need to be submitted for City approval prior to the expiration of the one year extension.  
Motion adopted unanimously.

Resolution 11-0144, Granting a Conditional Use Permit Amendment to Allow for Additional Time to Complete Improvements Related to Outdoor Storage at 10304 Naples Street NE. Blaine Environmental Campus, LLC.

Action 11-260 (AI 11.3)

Moved by Councilmember Kolb, seconded by Councilmember Bourke, that Resolution 11-0144, “Granting a Conditional Use Permit Amendment to Allow for Additional Time to Complete Improvements Related to Outdoor Storage at 10304 Naples Street NE,” be approved.

Community Development Director Schafer stated Blaine Environmental Campus received its original conditional use permit in 2000 to operate a solid waste transfer station.  Since that time, two buildings have been constructed on site and outdoor storage has been allowed in the rear yard.  These buildings and the outside storage have been approved with a series of conditional use permits.  In 2008, the applicant requested and was granted a conditional use permit to store clean recyclable products (clean wood, ferrous metals and non-ferrous metals) in stockpiles on the southeast portion of the site in front of the buildings.  The applicant was allowed to install a gravel surface under the temporary storage area for three (3) years per the conditional use permit resolution.  It has now been three (3) years since the resolution of approval was granted.  The applicant is requesting one (1) more year to complete the paving task.
Councilmember Herbst asked if there are any problems at the site.  Community Development Director Schafer responded no.

Motion adopted unanimously.
Resolution 11-0145, Granting Final Plat Approval to Subdivide 3.53 Acres into One (1) Lot, One (1) Outlot and .39 Acres for Road Right-of-Way to be Known as Cemstone Addition at 8502 Central Avenue NE.  Cemstone Products Company.

Action 11- 261 (AI 11.4)
Moved by Councilmember Hovland, seconded by Councilmember Swanson, that Resolution 11-0145, “Granting the Final Plat to Subdivide 3.53 Acres into One (1) Lot, One (1) Outlot and .39 Acres for Road Right-of-Way to be Known as Cemstone Addition at 8502 Central Avenue NE,” be approved.

Community Development Director Schafer stated in order to accommodate the construction of Kwik Trip, the applicant is proposing to plat several parcels into one lot, one outlot, and right-of-way for proposed Ulysses Street to be known as the Cemstone Addition.  A conditional use permit has already been approved.    
Councilmember Herbst asked about a directional sign for the businesses.  He stated the businesses are concerned about the driveway divider.  

Councilmember Kolb stated the City could contact Spring Lake Park about placing signage for the local businesses.
Motion adopted unanimously.
Resolution 11-0146, Granting Preliminary Plat Renewal to Subdivide 39.24 Acres into One (1) Lot and Six (6) Outlots to be Known as HIPP 1st Addition at 210 125th Avenue NE.  Welsh Companies.

Action 11-262 (AI 11.5A)
Moved by Councilmember Kolb, seconded by Councilmember Herbst, that Resolution 11-0146, “Granting the Preliminary Plat Renewal to Subdivide 39.24 Acres into One (1) Lot and Six (6) Outlots to be Known as HIPP 1st Addition at 210 125th Avenue NE,” be approved.

Community Development Director Schafer stated the next two items may be considered together.  Welsh Companies and their partners, Tradition Development and Walker ElderCare Services, received preliminary plat approval and a conditional use permit in 2009 to construct a senior housing facility on the corner of 125th Avenue NE (CSAH 14) and Jefferson Street NE.  He stated Jefferson Street needs to have work done from Main Street South to 124th Avenue and then 124th Avenue needs to be completed through the plat to be connected to Crescent Ponds second addition to the west.
Councilmember Kolb asked if keeping the project open will affect the Hipps.  
Bob Erickson, Welsh Companies, reported in February 2011, Nationwide Health Properties entered into a development agreement to finance the project; although, 30 days after the financing agreement was signed, Nationwide was purchased by Ventus and Ventus does not do development financing resulting in the loss of the project financing.  Mr. Erickson stated the Hipps were successful in transferring hospital beds from Hennepin County to Anoka County.  He thanked the City’s staff for their assistance with the work in transferring the beds.  He noted the Hipps have been strained by this challenging situation.  He stated financing is still attainable for a smaller building of 84 units and 125,000 square feet in phase one.  Mr. Erickson stated the original developer has left the project owing funds to contractors who have placed a lien on the property.  He stated Welsh expects to break ground next April 2012.
Councilmember Herbst asked if closing will be completed before April 2012.  Mr. Erickson responded yes.

Motion adopted unanimously.
Resolution 11-0147, Granting a Conditional Use Permit Renewal to Operate an 84-Unit Senior Housing Complex that Includes Independent Living Units, Memory Care Units and Skilled Nursing Units at 210 125th Avenue NE.  Welsh Companies.
Action 11-263 (AI 11.5B)
Moved by Councilmember Kolb, seconded by Councilmember Bourke, that Resolution 11-0147, “Granting a Conditional Use Permit Renewal to Operate an 84-Unit Senior Housing Complex that Includes Independent Living Units, Memory Care Units and Skilled Nursing Units at 210 125th Avenue NE,” be approved.

Motion adopted unanimously.
OTHER BUSINESS

Todd Anderson, 4603 121st Avenue NE, stated his property sits on the northeast corner of the Woodland Development.  He stated he is opposed to the plat plans to join Greenwood Parkway to Lever Court.  He asked the Council to have Greenwood Parkway made into a cul-de-sac.  He is concerned that residents will use the street as short cut to get to Target.  
City Manager Arneson commented soil remediation work is currently being done on contaminated soil.

Community Development Director Schafer stated the approvals that have been given have been a part of this project for six years.  He stated this plat was created in 2006 and decisions were made from this plat.  

Mr. Anderson asked if there is any flexibility on the project plans.  

Mayor Ryan stated the project goes back a long time and the developer’s work is from the original plan.
Community Development Director Schafer stated millions of dollars and years of planning have gone into this development.
ADJOURNMENT

Moved by Councilmember Herbst, seconded by Councilmember Bourke, to adjourn the meeting at 8:30 p.m.
Motion adopted unanimously.








Tom Ryan, Mayor

ATTEST:

Jane M. Cross, CMC, City Clerk

Submitted by TimeSaver Off Site Secretarial, Inc.

